# Board of Directors August 5th, 2024

#### **Old Business Motions**

 #2 - Establish a minimum age for OCF membership (John Alexander, George Braddock, Paxton Hoag, Kevin Levy, Lisa Parker, Sue Theolass, and Teresa Vaughn)

Note: Words in green and struck out are the original language. Words in red and italics are the newly proposed words.

Whereas it is in the interest of the Oregon Country Fair (The Fair) to define the eligibility requirements for voting membership in its Bylaws;

and Whereas, currently the age requirement is dependent on the age requirement to obtain a wristband, which is an operations matter outside the scope of the Bylaws,

The Board resolves to establish a minimum voting age of 16 years by the date of an election, and to amend the Bylaws to effect the change as follows:

#### Article V, Section 2(a):

a) Any individual is eligible for membership if the individual is registered with the OCF, has attained the age of 16 years, and has received either a wristband, other Fair camping pass, or verifiable worker day pass in one of the three previous Fairs, or is a verified elder in accordance with OCF Elders policy.

#### **Article V, Section 2(d): (new section)**

d) An individual must submit a registration form at least 30 days before a membership meeting or election to be eligible to vote at that meeting or election.

### Article V, Section 6(a):

- a) Voting. All members who have fulfilled the eligibility requirements of Article V, Section 2 have been members for at least 30 days prior to the date of a membership meeting shall be entitled to cast one vote on any issue brought before the membership.
- Clarify the effective beginning of terms of newly-elected Directors (John Alexander, George Braddock, Paxton Hoag, Kevin Levy, Lisa Parker, Sue Theolass, and Teresa Vaughn)

Note: Words in green and struck out are the original language. Words in red and italics are the newly proposed words.

Note: The committee recommends two options for this motion, and includes the first one in the motion itself, with a proposed amendment the Board may wish to consider when debating the motion.

Whereas the beginning and end of a Director's term of office needs to be clearly defined;

and Whereas the Board has a tradition of ceremonially installing new Directors at the annual Board meeting after the election;

and Whereas both the Oregon Nonprofit Corporation Act and our Bylaws are silent on the start of the effective term of office;

and Whereas the default effective date when both Statute and Bylaw are silent is at the time ballots are due at the election, which differs from tradition;

The Board resolves that the term of office of newly-elected Directors be effective upon ratification of the election results at the annual Board meeting, and to amend the Bylaws to effect the change as follows:

#### Article VII, Section 2(e):

- e) **Term**: Each Director shall serve for three years or until their resignation or removal, whichever occurs first. These three-year terms shall be staggered, with one third of total seats to be filled by a vote of the membership each year. The term of office of newly-elected Directors shall be effective upon ratification of the election results at the annual Board meeting.
- Change the petition signature requirement from a hard number to a percentage of members voting in the last election (John Alexander, George Braddock, Paxton Hoag, Kevin Levy, Lisa Parker, Sue Theolass, and Teresa Vaughn)

Note: Words in green and struck out are the original language. Words in red and italics are the newly proposed words.

Note: Some of the changes in this motion assume that Motion 1 passes. If it does not there is an alternate form of the motion below.

Whereas the number of members of the Oregon Country Fair (The Fair) varies from time to time:

and whereas The Board needs to establish a minimum number of signatures on an advisory petition or removal petition;

and whereas The Board does not wish to revisit the petition signature requirement threshold as the voting membership number changes;

The Board resolves that valid petitions are required to have the verified signatures of 100 Members or 8% of those voting in the most recent annual election, whichever number is greater, and to amend the Bylaws as follows:

# Article VI, Section 1:

1. <u>Annual Membership Meetings:</u> An annual meeting of the members shall be called by the Board of Directors at a date to be fixed by the Board, but in no case later than October 30. The purpose of the annual meeting shall be to <u>elect the Board of Directors</u>

present the members with a financial statement for the fiscal year then ending, and to consider any other business that the Directors may determine to be appropriate. Agendas for the annual meeting shall be set 55 days prior to the meeting. Beginning in 2022, advisory resolutions may be placed on the agenda for the annual meeting upon the petition of 100 or more of the members, by presenting the petition to the Membership Secretary by July 31, or at such earlier time as the Board of Directors may designate. Petitions must include member signatures with the name also legibly printed and the member's Fair affiliation.

#### Article VI, Section 2:

2. <u>Annual Elections.</u> An annual election ("Annual Election") shall be called by the Board of Directors at a date to be fixed by the Board, but in no case sooner than one week after the Annual Meeting nor later than October 30. The purpose of the election shall be to elect new Directors to the Board, to vote on Bylaw changes that require member approval or ratification, and to vote on advisory petitions.

Advisory resolutions may be placed on the Annual Election ballot upon the petition of 100 or more members or 8% of the number of members who voted in the most recent annual election, whichever number is greater, by presenting the petition to the Membership Secretary by July 31 or at such earlier time as the Board may designate. Petitions must include member signatures with the name also legibly printed and the member's Fair affiliation.

The Annual Eelection shall be conducted by written ballot in lieu of a membership meeting as provided in the Act, with ballots issued to all members via mail or other means as the Board may provide. The results of the election shall be certified by the Membership Secretary and the Treasurer within five days of the deadline for the return of ballots.

#### Article VI, Section 3:

3. <u>Special Meetings.</u> Special meetings of the members may be called from time to time by the Board and shall be called by the Membership Secretary upon petition of 100 or more members or 8% of the number of members who voted in the most recent annual election, whichever number is greater, describing the purpose(s) for which the meeting is to be held.

MOTION 5a: Changing the petition signature requirement from a hard number to a percentage of members voting in the last election (if Motion 1 is defeated)

Whereas the number of members of the Oregon Country Fair (The Fair) varies from time to time;

and whereas The Board needs to establish a minimum number of signatures on an advisory petition or removal petition;

and whereas The Board does not wish to revisit the petition signature requirement threshold as the voting membership number changes;

Be it resolved that valid petitions are required to have the verified signatures of 100 Members or 8% of those voting in the most recent annual election, whichever number is greater, and to amend the Bylaws as follows:

#### **Article VI, Section 1:**

1. Annual Membership Meetings: An annual meeting of the members shall be called by the Board of Directors at a date to be fixed by the Board, but in no case later than October 30. The purpose of the annual meeting shall be to elect the Board of Directors, to present the members with a financial statement for the fiscal year then ending, and to consider any other business that the Directors may determine to be appropriate. Agendas for the annual meeting shall be set 55 days prior to the meeting. Beginning in 2022, advisory resolutions may be placed on the agenda for the annual meeting upon the petition of 100 or more of the members, or 8% of the number of members who voted in the most recent annual election, whichever number is greater, by presenting the petition to the Membership Secretary by July 31, or at such earlier time as the Board of Directors may designate. Petitions must include member signatures with the name also legibly printed and the member's Fair affiliation.

#### **Article VI, Section 3:**

- 3. <u>Special Meetings.</u> Special meetings of the members may be called from time to time by the Board and shall be called by the Membership Secretary upon petition of 100 or more members or 8% of the number of members who voted in the most recent annual election, whichever number is greater, describing the purpose(s) for which the meeting is to be held.
- To continue the Fair's environmental leadership and to do its part to contain the severe threat climate change poses, the OCF Board of Directors hereby declares that it will remain dedicated to the goal of becoming a carbon neutral event by the year 2030 (Lisa Parker, Sandra Bauer, Sue Theolass, AJ Jackson, John Alexander and Teresa Vaughn)

BACKGROUND: In 2019, based on input from the Oregon Country Fair's (OCF's) 50th Anniversary Sustainability Initiative and in keeping with OCF's commitment to operate by a seventh generation Intention, the Board of Directors passed a motion stating, "To continue the Fair's environmental leadership and to do its part to contain the severe threat climate change poses, the OCF Board of Directors hereby declares that it will strive to become carbon neutral by 2025."

Please see the attached report from the Carbon Neutral Working Group which outlines the steps, progress, data collected and current recommendations from its work beginning in 2019.

 Process to keep committees in good standing (Sandra Bauer, Teresa Vaughn, Paxton Hoag, AJ Jackson and Arna Shaw)

# **Committee Good Standing Policy**

A Committee, Task Force, or Working Group (hereafter called a Committee) formed by a vote of the Oregon Country Fair Board of Directors that is fulfilling its mission and purpose and is following the Committee Best Practices Manual, the OCF Code of Conduct and all other OCF Guidelines is considered "in good standing". In the event that a committee is not meeting these conditions, the Board will use the following process to help committees get back on track.

# **Step One: Determination of Committee Status**

A minimum of three Board members must agree that a committee is straying from good standing. They will submit a confidential report to the Board detailing the specific issues that need to be resolved. The Board will meet in a closed session, pursuant to Article VIII, Section 3 of the Bylaws (since personnel issues may be involved) to act on the recommendation. If the Board finds that the committee is not in good standing,, they will send a Board-approved letter to the members of the committee detailing the specific issues that need to be addressed. At the sole discretion of the board, the process may start at whatever step is appropriate or delete any step. For example, the Board could move the committee directly to Step 3 and assign a mentoring team. Good Standing violations include but are not limited to the following:

- 1. Violations of Committee Best Practices
- 2. Violations of the Code of Conduct
- 3. Failure to work on or complete assigned tasks
- 4. Failure to submit a substantially complete Annual Report
- 5. Failure to achieve a 50% quorum of approved committee members for three meetings

# Step Two: A committee will be given three regularly scheduled meetings to resolve identified issues.

The committee will have three regularly scheduled meetings to resolve these issues. Within two weeks after these three regularly scheduled committee meetings, the committee must submit a response to the Board detailing how and if the issues have been resolved. The lack of a quorum or the cancellation of meetings will not affect this timeline. In the case of a committee that meets

infrequently, the timeline may be altered at the discretion of the Board. The Board liaison(s) shall support the committee in dealing with the specific issues outlined in Step One. Board liaison(s) may ask other Board members for assistance or the Board may assign Board members to assist.

The Board shall review the response from the committee in a closed session called in accordance with Article VIII, Section 3 of the Bylaws to determine whether the committee shall remain in good standing. Failure to submit a response automatically moves a committee to the status of "not in good standing". In the event the Board determines the committee is "not in good standing" they will move to Step 3 of this process.

# Step Three: A mentoring team will work with a committee "not in good standing" for two regularly scheduled meetings.

In the event a committee is determined to be "not in good standing" the Board will appoint a Mentoring Team to support the committee's success. The Board will also determine the steps the Mentoring Team and the committee must take to return the committee to good standing. Depending on the nature of the issues, the Board may suspend the committee while determining these next steps. These may include but are not limited to:

- Removing members who are not following the OCF Code of Conduct, Committee Best Practices Manual, OCF Guidelines and/or the committee's Mission Statement;
- 2. Removing members who have more than three absences at regularly scheduled meetings in the calendar year preceding the determination of "not in good standing" (health issues will be considered);
- 3. Issuing a call out for new members and selecting new members;
- 4. Refining the mission of the committee;
- 5. Ensuring that decisions are made by majority vote (after a reasonable attempt to reach consensus);
- 6. Requiring a quorum of at least 50% of members;
- 7. Requiring the committee to submit past due minutes and all new committee minutes within a time specified by the Board for posting on the oregoncountryfair.net site;
- 8. Requiring that subcommittee minutes are submitted to all members of the committee before the next regularly scheduled meeting; and/or
- 9. Requiring the committee to submit a list of committee members and friends of the committee (with contact information) to the OCF office for updating the contact list.

Within two weeks after these two regularly scheduled meetings, the Mentoring Team and the committee will each submit a report to the Board detailing the steps taken to cure the issues. Again, the lack of a quorum or the cancellation of meetings will not affect this timeline. In the case of a committee that meets infrequently, the timeline can be altered at the discretion of the Board.

# Step Four: Resolution.

The Board will then meet in a closed session called in accordance with Article VIII, Section 3 of the Bylaws, to determine the committee's status. The four options are:

- 1. The committee would be returned to a status of "in good standing", or
- 2. The committee would remain "not in good standing, but be given additional time to come into good standing, or
- 3. The committee will be disbanded, or
- 4. The Mentoring Team and the Board appointed committee may offer an alternative solution.
- Appoint Aaron Moffet and Jill Carter to Food Committee (Sue Theolass, Paxton Hoag and AJ Jackson)
- Appoint Glenn Dolphin to LUMP Committee (Sue Theolass, Paxton Hoag and George Braddock)

#### **New Business Motions**

- Appoint Sandra Bauer to the Personnel Policies Committee (John Alexander and Arna Shaw)
- Appoint Ashley Akerberg to the Personnel Policies Committee (Tom Horn and Sandra Bauer)